
 
 

 
 
 
16 June 2022 
 
 
To: Councillors G Coleman, Hutton and D Scott  

 
The above members are requested to attend the:  
 

LICENSING PANEL 
 

Tuesday, 28 June 2022 at 2.00 pm 
via Zoom meeting 

 

A G E N D A 
 
 

1  APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN   
 

 To appoint a Chairman for the meeting. 
 

2  DECLARATION OF INTEREST - LICENSING   
 

 Members are asked to declare any interests in the items under consideration and in 
doing so state:- 
 
(1) the type of interest concerned 
 
(2) the nature of the interest concerned; and 
 
(3) whether they have or have not sat on a Planning Committee which has previously 
considered a planning application in respect of a licensed premises which is also subject 
to consideration for a premises licence as part of the agenda for this meeting. 
 
If any Member requires advice on declarations of interests, they are advised to contact 
the Head of Democratic Governance in advance of the meeting. 

 
3  PROCEDURE FOR THE MEETING   

 
 The Chairman of the Panel will summarise the procedure and announce the equal 

maximum amount of time for each party to speak for the hearing. 
 
A. Items 1 and 4 (b) will be undertaken in private session by the Panel and not in 
the Meeting Room.  
B. Items 2, 3 and 4(a) will be recommended to the Panel to be held in public. 

Public Document Pack



C.         The Panel may decide to exclude the public from all or part of a hearing where it 
considers that the public interest in so doing outweighs the public interest in the 
hearing, or that part of the hearing, taking place in public. (This includes a party and 
any person assisting or representing a party) 

 
4  APPLICATION TO VARY A PREMISES LICENCE - A.A. RETAIL LTD, 99-101 WHITEGATE 

DRIVE  (Pages 1 - 36) 
 

 To consider an application to vary the Premises Licence for A.A. Retail Ltd, 99-101 
Whitegate Drive, Blackpool, FY3 9BY. 
 
A. Application and representations submitted. To consider the attached report. 
B. Determination of the application to vary a Premises Licence – A.A. Retail Ltd, 99-101 
Whitegate Drive. 
 
The Licensing Panel will indicate how the decision is to be communicated to interested 
parties. 

 
 
 

Other information: 
 

For queries regarding this agenda please contact Sarah Chadwick, Democratic Governance 
Senior Advisor, Tel: 01253 477153, e-mail sarah.chadwick@blackpool.gov.uk 
 

Copies of agendas and minutes of Council and committee meetings are available on the 
Council’s website at www.blackpool.gov.uk. 

 

http://www.blackpool.gov.uk/


Report to: LICENSING PANEL 

Relevant Officer: Lisa Michelle Ashton, Licensing Officer 

Date of Meeting: 28 June 2022 

 
 

APPLICATION TO VARY A PREMISES LICENCE – A.A Retail Ltd, 99 – 101 
Whitegate Drive, Blackpool, FY3 9BY 
 

1.0  
 

Purpose of the report: 
 

1.1  
 

To consider an application for a variation of Premise Licence PL1118 for A.A. Retail Ltd, 99-
101 Whitegate Drive, Blackpool, FY3 9BY. 
 

2.0  Recommendation(s): 
 

2.1  The Panel is requested to consider the application and determine whether the granting of 
the variation would adversely impact upon the Licensing Objectives. 

  
3.0  Reasons for recommendation(s): 

 
3.1  
 

Representations have been received therefore there must be a hearing to determine the 
application. 
 

3.2  Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or approved by 
the Council? 
 

No 

3.3  Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved budget? 
 

Yes 

4.0  Other alternative options to be considered: 
 

4.1  None, once an application is submitted and representations received it must be 
considered by the Licensing Panel. 
 

5.0  Council priority: 
 

5.1  The relevant Council priority is  

 “The economy: Maximising growth and opportunity across Blackpool” 
 
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



6.0  Background information 
 

6.1  On 27 April 2022 the Licensing Service received an application from Mr M Marshall of M 
Squared Services on behalf of Mr Gunaratnam Ketheeswaran for the variation of Premises 
Licence PL1118 for A.A. Retail Ltd, 99-101 Whitegate Drive, Blackpool, FY3 9BY. 
 

6.2  The current licence permits “off” sales of alcohol between 08.00 and 23.00 Monday to 
Saturday and 10.00 to 22.30 on Sunday, with special hours on Christmas Day and Good 
Friday. The proposal is to vary the timings to 07.00 to 00.00 seven days per week. A copy 
of the current licence is attached at Appendix 4(b). 
 

6.3  The applicant is requesting that the existing conditions on the licence are retained with 
the exception of condition 1 in Annex 1 which will be removed if the variation is granted as 
the hours conflict with the intended trading hours sought. 
 
Annex 1, Condition 1: 
 
Alcohol shall not be sold or supplied except during permitted hours. In this condition, 
permitted hours means: 
a) On weekdays, other than Christmas Day, 8 a.m. to 11 p.m. 
b) On Sundays, other than on Christmas Day, 10 a.m. to 10.30 p.m. 
c) On Christmas Day, 12 noon to 3 p.m. and 7 p.m. to 10.30 p.m. 
d) On Good Friday, 8 a.m. to 10.30 p.m. 
The above restrictions do not prohibit: 
a) During the first twenty minutes after the above hours, the taking of the alcohol from 
the 
premises, unless the alcohol is supplied or taken in an open vessel; 
b) The ordering of alcohol to be consumed off the premises, or the despatch by the vendor 
of the alcohol so ordered; 
c) The sale of alcohol to a trader or club for the purposes of the trade or club; 
d) The sale or supply of alcohol to any canteen or mess, being a canteen in which the sale 
or supply of alcohol is carried out under the authority of the Secretary of State or an 
authorised mess of members of Her Majesty’s naval, military or air force; 
 

6.4  Representations have been received from the Licensing Authority and Lancashire 
Constabulary. Copies of the representations are attached at Appendices 4(c) and 4(d). 
 

6.5  Local policy considerations: 
 

The premises falls within the area covered by the Off Licence Cumulative Impact 
Assessment (CIA).  
 
The following sections of Blackpool Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy are relevant: 
 

Page 2

https://www.blackpool.gov.uk/Business/Licensing-and-permits/Documents/2065923-Cumulative-Impact-Assessment-2021-Accessible.pdf
https://www.blackpool.gov.uk/Business/Licensing-and-permits/Documents/2065923-Cumulative-Impact-Assessment-2021-Accessible.pdf
https://www.blackpool.gov.uk/Business/Licensing-and-permits/Documents/2065924-Licensing-Policy-2021-Accessible.pdf


4.10.1 Applications for new licences or variations to existing licences within a cumulative 
impact area, which are likely to add to the existing cumulative impact, will normally be 
refused if a relevant representation is received. To persuade the Council to depart from its 
policy an applicant must demonstrate that their application will not add to the existing 
cumulative impact in the area. This should be done through the operating schedule and 
the risk assessment process (if used). 
 
4.10.6 Where representations are received the Council will consider the circumstances of 
each individual application and decide whether it would be justified in departing from its 
policy and CIA in the light of the individual circumstances of the case. 
 

6.6  National policy considerations: 
 
9.12 – Each responsible authority will be an expert in their respective field, and in some 
cases it is likely that a particular responsible authority will be the licensing authority’s main 
source of advice in relation to a particular licensing objective… any responsible authority 
under the 2003 Act may make representations with regard to any of the licensing 
objectives if they have evidence to support such representations. Licensing authorities 
must therefore consider all relevant representations from responsible authorities 
carefully... However, it remains incumbent on all responsible authorities to ensure that 
their representations can withstand the scrutiny to which they would be subject at a 
hearing.  
 
9.43 – The authority’s decision should be evidence-based, justified as being appropriate 
for the promotion of the licensing objectives and proportionate to what it is intended to 
achieve. 
 
14.44 – A CIA should never be absolute. Statements of licensing policy should always allow 
for the circumstances of each application to be considered properly and for applications  
that are unlikely to add to the cumulative impact on the licensing objectives to be  
granted. After receiving relevant representations in relation to a… variation of a licence or 
certificate, the licensing authority must consider whether it would be justified in departing 
from its CIA in the light of the individual circumstances of the case… If the licensing 
authority decides that an application should be refused, it will still need to show that the 
grant of the application would undermine the promotion of one or more of the licensing 
objectives and that appropriate conditions would be ineffective in preventing the 
problems involved. 
 

6.7  Does the information submitted include any exempt information? No 
 

6.8 
 
 
 

Observations: 
 
The Premises Licence for this property was first granted in September 2005. The applicant, 
Mr Gunaratnam Ketheeswaran, has been the Premises Licence holder since April 2014. 

Page 3



  
The conditions currently on the licence are as follows: 
 
Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions 
 
1 Alcohol shall not be sold or supplied except during permitted hours.  In this 

condition, permitted hours means: 
 

a) On weekdays, other than Christmas Day, 8 a.m. to 11 p.m. 
b) On Sundays, other than on Christmas Day, 10 a.m. to 10.30 p.m. 
c) On Christmas Day, 12 noon to 3 p.m. and 7 p.m. to 10.30 p.m. 
d) On Good Friday, 8 a.m. to 10.30 p.m. 

 
The above restrictions do not prohibit: 

 
a) During the first twenty minutes after the above hours, the taking of the alcohol 

from the premises, unless the alcohol is supplied or taken in an open vessel; 
b) The ordering of alcohol to be consumed off the premises, or the despatch by 

the vendor of the alcohol so ordered; 
c) The sale of alcohol to a trader or club for the purposes of the trade or club; 
d) The sale or supply of alcohol to any canteen or mess, being a canteen in which 

the sale or supply of alcohol is carried out under the authority of the Secretary 
of State or an authorised mess of members of Her Majesty’s naval, military or 
air force; 

 
2 Alcohol shall not be sold in an open container or be consumed in the licensed 

premises. 
 
3 No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence - 
 

a) At a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the 
premises licence, 

 
or 

 
b) At a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal 

licence or his personal licence is suspended. 
 
4 Every supply of alcohol under the premise licence must be made or authorised by a 

person who holds a personal licence. 
 
5 The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder shall ensure that an 

age verification policy applies to the premises in relation to the sale or supply of 
alcohol. The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person 

Page 4



to be under 18 year of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to 
produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their 
photograph, date of birth and a holographic mark. 

 
Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule  
 
1 CCTV will be installed internally and externally at the premises and will comply with 

the following: 
 
 a. The CCTV system shall be installed, maintained and operated to the reasonable 

satisfaction of Lancashire Constabulary. All public areas of the premises are to be 
covered by the system. The system will incorporate a camera covering each of the 
entrance doors and will be capable of providing an image which is regarded as 
identification standard. 

 b. The system will display on any recording the correct time and date of the 
recording. 

 c. The system will make recordings during all hours the premises are open to the 
public. 

 d. VCR tapes or digital recording shall be held for a minimum of 31 days and 28 
days respectively after the recording is made and will be made available to the 
Police or any authorised persons acting for a Responsible Authority for inspection 
upon request. 

 e. The system will, as a minimum, record images of the head and shoulders of all 
persons entering the premises. 

 
2 A staff member who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV system will be 

on the premises at all times the premises are open to the public. This staff member 
will be able to show recent data or footage with the absolute minimum of delay 
when requested to a Police Officer or to a Local Authority Enforcement Officer. 

 
3 The Licence Holder or Designated Premises Supervisor shall notify the Police 

Licensing Unit on any occasion when the CCTV is to be inoperative for a period in 
excess of one working day and shall provide a certificate from a competent person 
stating the reason for the system being inoperative and the measures which have 
been taken to satisfy the licence conditions. 

 
4 Appropriate signage alerting customers to CCTV recording shall be displayed in 

conspicuous positions on the premises. 
 
5 Bi-annually documented maintenance checks of the CCTV system, including the 

recording system, will be undertaken by the Designated Premises Supervisor to 
ensure that the system is in good working order and fit for purpose. 

 
 

Page 5



6 A Personal Licence holder will be available to attend the premises within 30 
minutes while the sale and supply of alcohol takes place. 

 
7 The licence holder shall erect and maintain a sufficient number of signs at and in 

the vicinity of alcohol sales points informing customers that sales will not be made 
to persons under 18 years of age. 

 
8 The licence holder will implement the Challenge 25 policy and the only forms of 

identification acceptable will be: 
 
 UK photo driving licence 
 Passport 
 Proof of Age Standards Scheme Card 
 
9 A refusals register to be kept and maintained which is readily available for 

inspection by a Police Constable or authorised officer and this register will be 
reviewed weekly by the licence holder or Designated Premises Supervisor. 

 
10 Refresher training re. underage sales to be provided to all staff every three months, 

and documented evidence. 
 
11 All staff must be over the age of 18 to sell alcohol. 
 
12 A record shall be kept on the premises of every person employed at the premises. 
 
 The record is to contain the following details: 
 
 i. Name and address 
 ii. Date of birth 
 iii. Time duty commenced and time duty terminated. 
 
 Said records are to be made available for inspection upon demand by a Police 

Officer or any authorised officer. 
 

7.0  List of Appendices: 
 

7.1  Appendix 4(a) Application for the variation of Premises Licence PL1118 
Appendix 4(b) Current licence PL1118 
Appendix 4(c) Objection from Licensing Authority 
Appendix 4(d) Objection from Lancashire Constabulary. 
 

8.0  Financial considerations: 
 

8.1  None. 

Page 6



 
9.0  Legal considerations: 

 
9.1 Please see local and national policy in the background information. 

 
10.0  Risk management considerations: 

 
10.1  None. 

 
11.0  Equalities considerations: 

 
11.1  None. 

 
12.0  Sustainability, climate change and environmental considerations: 

 
12.1  None. 

 
13.0  Internal/external consultation undertaken: 

 
13.1  A 28 day consultation period has been undertaken in accordance with the statutory 

requirements of the Licensing Act 2003. 
 

14.0  Background papers: 
 

14.1  None. 
 
 

 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 4(a)

Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Licensing Act 2003

Premises Licence PL1118

POSTAL ADDRESS OF PREMISES, OR IF NONE, ORDNANCE SURVEY MAP REFERENCE OR DESCRIPTION

A. A. Retail Ltd
99-101 Whitegate Drive, Blackpool, Lancashire, FY3 9BY. Telephone 01253 300840

WHERE THE LICENCE IS TIME LIMITED THE DATES

Not applicable

LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES AUTHORISED BY THE LICENCE

the supply of alcohol-

THE TIMES THE LICENCE AUTHORISES THE CARRYING OUT OF LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES

Activity (and Area if applicable) Description Time From Time To

J. Sale by retail of alcohol for consumption OFF the premises only
Licensed Area Weekdays, other than

Christmas Day 08:00 23:00

Sundays, other than on
Christmas Day 10:00 22:30

Christmas Day 12:00 15:00
and 19:00 22:30

Good Friday 08:00 22:30

THE OPENING HOURS OF THE PREMISES

Description Time From Time To

Licensed Area Monday - Sunday

WHERE THE LICENCE AUTHORISES SUPPLIES OF ALCOHOL WHETHER THESE ARE ON AND / OR OFF SUPPLIES

- J. Sale by retail of alcohol for consumption OFF the premises only

Part 2

NAME, (REGISTERED) ADDRESS, TELEPHONE NUMBER AND EMAIL (WHERE RELEVANT) OF HOLDER OF PREMISES LICENCE

Gunaratnam Ketheeswaran 

REGISTERED NUMBER OF HOLDER, FOR EXAMPLE COMPANY NUMBER, CHARITY NUMBER (WHERE APPLICABLE)

NAME, ADDRESS AND TELEPHONE NUMBER OF DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR WHERE THE PREMISES LICENCE
AUTHORISES THE SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

Gunaratnam KETHEESWARAN

Part 1 - Premises Details

Printed by LalPac on 15 Jun 2022 at 12:53 Page 1 of 6PL1118/88769

LS/D/005/25/1

Appendix 4(b)

Page 29



Licensing Act 2003

Premises Licence PL1118
PERSONAL LICENCE NUMBER AND ISSUING AUTHORITY OF PERSONAL LICENCE HELD BY DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR
WHERE THE PREMISES LICENCE AUTHORISES FOR THE SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

1100333LAPERLicence No. Issued by Bromley

ANNEXES

Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions

1 Alcohol shall not be sold or supplied except during permitted hours.  In this condition, permitted 
hours means:

a) On weekdays, other than Christmas Day, 8 a.m. to 11 p.m.
b) On Sundays, other than on Christmas Day, 10 a.m. to 10.30 p.m.
c) On Christmas Day, 12 noon to 3 p.m. and 7 p.m. to 10.30 p.m.
d) On Good Friday, 8 a.m. to 10.30 p.m.

The above restrictions do not prohibit:

a) During the first twenty minutes after the above hours, the taking of the alcohol from the
premises, unless the alcohol is supplied or taken in an open vessel;

b) The ordering of alcohol to be consumed off the premises, or the despatch by the vendor of
the alcohol so ordered;

c) The sale of alcohol to a trader or club for the purposes of the trade or club;
d) The sale or supply of alcohol to any canteen or mess, being a canteen in which the sale or

supply of alcohol is carried out under the authority of the Secretary of State or an authorised
mess of members of Her Majesty’s naval, military or air force;

2 Alcohol shall not be sold in an open container or be consumed in the licensed premises.

3 No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence -

a) At a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises licence,

or

b) At a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or his
personal licence is suspended.

4 Every supply of alcohol under the premise licence must be made or authorised by a person who 
holds a personal licence.

5 The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder shall ensure that an age 
verification policy applies to the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol. The policy 
must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 year of age (or such 
older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohol, 
identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and a holographic mark.

Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule 

1 CCTV will be installed internally and externally at the premises and will comply with the following:

Printed by LalPac on 15 Jun 2022 at 12:53 Page 2 of 6PL1118/88769

LS/D/005/25/1
Page 30



Licensing Act 2003

Premises Licence PL1118
ANNEXES  continued ...

a. The CCTV system shall be installed, maintained and operated to the reasonable satisfaction of
Lancashire Constabulary. All public areas of the premises are to be covered by the system. The
system will incorporate a camera covering each of the entrance doors and will be capable of
providing an image which is regarded as identification standard.
b. The system will display on any recording the correct time and date of the recording.
c. The system will make recordings during all hours the premises are open to the public.
d. VCR tapes or digital recording shall be held for a minimum of 31 days and 28 days respectively
after the recording is made and will be made available to the Police or any authorised persons
acting for a Responsible Authority for inspection upon request.
e. The system will, as a minimum, record images of the head and shoulders of all persons
entering the premises.

2 A staff member who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV system will be on the premises 
at all times the premises are open to the public. This staff member will be able to show recent 
data or footage with the absolute minimum of delay when requested to a Police Officer or to a 
Local Authority Enforcement Officer.

3 The Licence Holder or Designated Premises Supervisor shall notify the Police Licensing Unit on 
any occasion when the CCTV is to be inoperative for a period in excess of one working day and 
shall provide a certificate from a competent person stating the reason for the system being 
inoperative and the measures which have been taken to satisfy the licence conditions.

4 Appropriate signage alerting customers to CCTV recording shall be displayed in conspicuous 
positions on the premises.

5 Bi-annually documented maintenance checks of the CCTV system, including the recording 
system, will be undertaken by the Designated Premises Supervisor to ensure that the system is in 
good working order and fit for purpose.

6 A Personal Licence holder will be available to attend the premises within 30 minutes while the sale 
and supply of alcohol takes place.

7 The licence holder shall erect and maintain a sufficient number of signs at and in the vicinity of 
alcohol sales points informing customers that sales will not be made to persons under 18 years of 
age.

8 The licence holder will implement the Challenge 25 policy and the only forms of identification 
acceptable will be:

UK photo driving licence
Passport
Proof of Age Standards Scheme Card

9 A refusals register to be kept and maintained which is readily available for inspection by a Police 
Constable or authorised officer and this register will be reviewed weekly by the licence holder or 
Designated Premises Supervisor.

10 Refresher training re. underage sales to be provided to all staff every three months, and 

Printed by LalPac on 15 Jun 2022 at 12:53 Page 3 of 6PL1118/88769

LS/D/005/25/1
Page 31



Licensing Act 2003

Premises Licence PL1118
ANNEXES  continued ...

documented evidence.

11 All staff must be over the age of 18 to sell alcohol.

12 A record shall be kept on the premises of every person employed at the premises.

The record is to contain the following details:

i. Name and address
ii. Date of birth
iii. Time duty commenced and time duty terminated.

Said records are to be made available for inspection upon demand by a Police Officer or any 
authorised officer.

Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority

Not applicable

Annex 4 - Plans

See attached reference PL1118 / 1 / 2

Signature of Authorised Officer

Printed by LalPac on 15 Jun 2022 at 12:53 Page 4 of 6PL1118/88769

LS/D/005/25/1
Page 32



Appendix 4(c)

Page 33



Page 34



Appendix 4(d) 

RA Representation Form 

LS/F/005/27/1 

Blackpool Council Licensing Service 
 

Representation made by a Responsible Authority  
to an application for the variation of a Premises 

Licence 

Responsible Authority  

Name of Responsible 
Authority 

LANCASHIRE CONSTABULARY 

Name of Officer    (please 

print) Sgt 3390 Nat Cox 

Signature of Officer 

 

Contact telephone number 01253 604074 

Date representation made 10 06 22 

Do you consider mediation to be appropriate  NO 

Premises Details 

Premises Name AA Retail 

Address 99-101 Whitegate Drive 

 Blackpool 

  

  

Post Code FY3 9BY 

Reasons for making representations 

I am in receipt of an application for a Variation in order to extend the 
timings of the sale of alcohol for consumption off the premises for the 
above address. 
 
On behalf of the Chief Officer of Police, having reviewed the application 
the Police make formal objections on the following grounds: 
 
The Police base this objection on this application being within the off-
licence saturation zone. The purpose of this Policy is to limit the number 
of off licensed premises within a given geographic area, in order to reduce 
crime and disorder and promote the licensing objectives.  
 
This premises sits within Talbot Ward which along with Claremont is the 
worst affected in relation to alcohol related Police incidents; 68.79 
incidents per 1,000 population compared to 18.04 per 1,000 for the Town 
as a whole (As per the recently amended Cumulative Impact Assessment 

Page 35



Appendix 4(d) 

RA Representation Form 

LS/F/005/27/1 

Policy). The Police are concerned that by increasing the licensable hours 
there will naturally be an increase in alcohol related Police incidents. Over 
the last year to date alone Police logged 12,963 incidents in Talbot Ward. 

 

It is recommended that the licence should only be granted if the application is 
amended, or if conditions are applied, as detailed below. 

 N/A 

 

Page 36


	Agenda
	4 APPLICATION TO VARY A PREMISES LICENCE - A.A. RETAIL LTD, 99-101 WHITEGATE DRIVE
	Appendix 4a - 99-101 Whitegate Drive variation app
	Appendix 4b - PL1118 existing licence
	Appendix 4c - Licensing Authority objection
	Appendix 4d - Police objection




